

STATE GOVERNMENT: Welsh, Chair; Coleman and Soorholtz

FILED JAN 26 1987

SENATE FILE 55
BY HALL

Passed Senate, Date 3-26-87 (p. 919) Passed House, Date _____
Vote: Ayes 39 Nays 2 Vote: Ayes _____ Nays _____
Approved _____

A BILL FOR

1 An Act to remove the requirement that a gambling license cannot
2 be issued for a period of two years for a location for which a
3 gambling license was revoked.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

5
6
7
8
9

SENATE FILE 55

S-3162

- 1 Amend Senate File 55 as follows:
- 2 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
- 3 following:
- 4 "Sec. ____ Section 99B.7, subsection 2, paragraph
- 5 c, unnumbered paragraph 1, is amended by striking the
- 6 unnumbered paragraph."
- 7 2. Title, line 3, by inserting after the word
- 8 "revoked" the following: ", and removing the
- 9 prohibition against conducting games of skill, games
- 10 of chance, and raffles on the premises of a liquor
- 11 control licensee or beer permittee".

S-3162

Filed March 12, 1987

Adopted 3/26/87 (p. 919)

BY COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT
ROBERT M. CARR, Chairperson

SF 55

1 Section 1. Section 99B.2, subsection 1, unnumbered
2 paragraph 2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

3 ~~A license shall not be issued for a location for which a~~
4 ~~previous license issued under this chapter or chapter 123 has~~
5 ~~been revoked until the period of the revocation or revocations~~
6 ~~has elapsed.~~ A license shall not be issued to an individual
7 whose previous license issued under this chapter or chapter
8 123 has been revoked until the period of revocation or
9 revocations has elapsed. This prohibition applies even though
10 the individual has created a different legal entity than the
11 one to which the previous license that had been revoked was
12 issued. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, a
13 license is valid for a period of two years from the date of
14 issue. The license fee is not refundable, but shall be
15 returned to the applicant if an application is not approved.
16 If a bingo license is issued by the division, the licensee
17 shall be notified by the division of the renewal date for the
18 license ten days prior to that date.

19 EXPLANATION

20 Presently, a gambling license cannot be issued for a period
21 of two years for a location for which a previous gambling
22 license has been revoked. The bill strikes this prohibition.

23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

Her & Title Genl. 3/31/87
Amend (3674) + De Pac 4/8 (p. 1231)

SENATE FILE 55
BY HALL

(AS AMENDED AND PASSED BY THE SENATE MARCH 26, 1987)

~~_____~~ - New Language by the Senate

Passed Senate, Date 5/6/87 (p. 1724) Passed House, Date 5/5/87 (p. 1986)

Vote: Ayes 34 Nays 12 Vote: Ayes 62 Nays 36

Approved June 3, 1987
Engrossed House 5/6/87 (p. 2204)
12-18

A BILL FOR

1 An Act to remove the requirement that a gambling license cannot
2 be issued for a period of two years for a location for which a
3 gambling license was revoked, and removing the prohibition
4 against conducting games of skill, games of chance, and
5 raffles on the premises of a liquor control licensee or beer
6 permittee.

7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

1 Section 1. Section 99B.2, subsection 1, unnumbered
2 paragraph 2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

3 ~~A license shall not be issued for a location for which a~~
4 ~~previous license issued under this chapter or chapter 123 has~~
5 ~~been revoked until the period of the revocation or revocations~~
6 ~~has elapsed.~~ A license shall not be issued to an individual
7 whose previous license issued under this chapter or chapter
8 123 has been revoked until the period of revocation or
9 revocations has elapsed. This prohibition applies even though
10 the individual has created a different legal entity than the
11 one to which the previous license that had been revoked was
12 issued. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, a
13 license is valid for a period of two years from the date of
14 issue. The license fee is not refundable, but shall be
15 returned to the applicant if an application is not approved.
16 If a bingo license is issued by the division, the licensee
17 shall be notified by the division of the renewal date for the
18 license ten days prior to that date.

19 Sec. 2. Section 99B.7, subsection 2, paragraph c,
20 unnumbered paragraph 1, is amended by striking the unnumbered
21 paragraph.

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

SENATE FILE 55

H-3670

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, by striking lines 19 through 21 and
4 inserting the following:
5 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.7, subsection 2, paragraph
6 c, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to
7 read as follows:
8 The Except for purposes of bingo, the person from
9 whom the premises are rented shall not be a liquor
10 control licensee or beer permittee with respect to
11 those premises or with respect to adjacent premises."

BY PAVICH of Pottawattamie RENKEN of Grundy
BLANSHAN of Greene VAN CAMP of Scott
H-3670 FILED APRIL 8, 1987 RENAUD of Polk
Adopted 5/5/87 (y. 1984)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3674

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and re-
2 printed by the Senate, as follows:
3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the fol-
4 lowing:
5 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.7, subsection 1, Code 1987,
6 is amended by adding the following new lettered para-
7 graph:
8 NEW LETTERED PARAGRAPH. p. The person or
9 organization shall keep records of all persons who
10 serve as manager or cashier, or who are responsible
11 for carrying out duties with respect to a bingo
12 account. Any person or organization which knowingly
13 permits a person who was a manager, cashier, or
14 responsible for carrying out duties with respect to a
15 bingo account for another organization at the time of
16 one or more violations leading to revocation of its
17 license, and which license is currently under
18 revocation shall be subject to license revocation."
19 2. Renumber sections and correct internal
20 references as necessary in accordance with this
21 amendment.

H-3674 FILED APRIL 8, 1987 BY COMMITTEE ON STATE GOVERNMENT
Adopted 5/5/87 (y. 1982)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3692

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
4 following:

5 "Sec. ____ . NEW SECTION. 99B.2A MINIMUM AGE.

6 It is unlawful for an individual under eighteen
7 years of age to participate in or be in attendance at
8 a bingo occasion after seven o'clock p.m. if the prize
9 for a winner is greater than or equal to twenty-five
10 dollars in a single game."

11 2. Title page, line 6, by inserting after the
12 word "permittee" the following: ", and relating to
13 the age of individuals allowed to be present at a
14 bingo occasion."

15 3. Renumber as necessary.

H-3692 FILED APRIL 9, 1987 BY SHOULTZ of Black Hawk
Adopted 5/5/87 (p. 1934)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3761

1 Amend the Shoultz amendment, H-3692, to Senate File
2 55, as amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate,
3 as follows:

4 1. Page 1, line 6, by striking the word
5 "eighteen" and inserting the following: "fourteen".

BY SHOULTZ of Black Hawk
H-3761 FILED APRIL 14, 1987 PAVICH of Pottawattamie
Done 5/5/87 (p. 1932)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3776

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
4 following:

5 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.5, subsection 1, paragraph
6 g, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

7 g. The actual retail value of any prize does not
8 exceed fifty dollars. If a prize consists of more
9 than one item, unit, or part, the aggregate retail
10 value of all items, units, or parts shall not exceed
11 fifty dollars. However, either a fair sponsor or a
12 qualified organization, but not both, may hold one
13 raffle per calendar year at which a-prize prizes
14 having a combined value not greater than twenty
15 thousand dollars may be offered. If the prize is
16 merchandise, its value shall be determined by the
17 purchase price paid by the fair sponsor or qualified
18 organization."

19 2. Renumber sections and correct internal
20 references as necessary in accordance with this
21 amendment.

BY JOCHUM of Dubuque
H-3776 FILED APRIL 15, 1987 TABOR of Jackson
Adopted 5/5/87 (p. 1933)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3890

1 Amend Senate File 55 as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 21 the
4 following:

5 "Sec. 3. Section 99B.7, subsection 3, paragraph a,
6 Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

7 a. A person wishing to conduct games and raffles
8 pursuant to this section as a qualified organization
9 shall submit an application and a license fee of one
10 hundred dollars. However, upon submission of an
11 application accompanied by a license fee of fifteen
12 dollars, a person may be issued a limited license
13 which shall authorize the person to conduct all games
14 and raffles pursuant to this section at a specified
15 location and during a specified period of fourteen
16 consecutive calendar days. A limited license shall
17 not be issued more than once during any calendar year
18 to the same person~~7-or-for-the-same-location~~. For the
19 purposes of this paragraph, a limited license is
20 deemed to be issued on the first day of the fourteen-
21 day period for which the license is issued."

22 2. Page 1, by inserting before line 22 the
23 following:

24 "Sec. 4. Section 99B.8, subsection 1, unnumbered
25 paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

26 Games of skill, games of chance, card games and
27 raffles lawfully may be conducted during a period of
28 twelve consecutive hours once each year ~~at any~~
29 ~~location7-or by any person7~~. The games or raffles may
30 be conducted at any location except one for which a
31 license is required pursuant to section 99B.3 or
32 section 99B.5, or except a location covered by a class
33 "C", or class "D" liquor control license, or any beer
34 permit unless such location has been licensed pursuant
35 to section 99B.6 as premises upon which gambling is
36 allowed, but only if all of the following are complied
37 with:

38 Sec. 5. Section 99B.8, subsection 3, Code 1987, is
39 amended to read as follows:

40 3. The division may issue a license pursuant to
41 this section only once during a calendar year to any
42 one person ~~or-for-any-one-location~~. The license may be
43 issued only upon submission to the division of an
44 application and a license fee of twenty-five dollars."

H-3890 FILED APRIL 22, 1987 BY JOCHUM of Dubuque

B- (Adopted as amended) by 3925,
April 8 5/5/87 (1985)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3872

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
4 following:

5 "Sec. _____. Section 99B.6, subsection 1, unnumbered
6 paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

7 Except as provided in subsections 5, 6, and 7,
8 gambling is unlawful on premises for which a class
9 "A", class "B", class "C", or class "D" liquor control
10 license, or class "B" beer permit has been issued
11 pursuant to chapter 123 unless all of the following
12 are complied with:

13 Sec. _____. Section 99B.6, Code 1987, is amended by
14 adding the following new subsection:

15 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. The holder of a liquor control
16 license or beer permit may conduct a sports betting
17 pool if the game is publicly displayed and the rules
18 of the game, including the cost per participant and
19 the amount of the winning is conspicuously displayed
20 on or near the pool. No participant may wager more
21 than five dollars and the maximum winnings to all
22 participants from the pool shall not exceed five
23 hundred dollars. The provisions of subsection 1,
24 except paragraphs "c" and "h" and the prohibition of
25 the use of concealed numbers in paragraph "d", are
26 applicable to pools conducted under this subsection.
27 If a pool permitted by this subsection involves the
28 use of concealed numbers, the numbers shall be
29 selected by a random method and no person shall be
30 aware of the numbers at the time wagers are made in
31 the pool. All moneys wagered shall be awarded to
32 participants. For purposes of this subsection, "pool"
33 means a game in which the participants select a square
34 on a grid corresponding to numbers on two intersecting
35 sides of the grid and winners are determined by
36 whether the square selected corresponds to numbers
37 relating to an athletic event in the manner prescribed
38 by the rules of the game."

39 2. Renumber sections and correct internal
40 references as necessary in accordance with this
41 amendment.

BY PAVICH of Pottawattamie
RENAUD of Polk

H-3872 FILED APRIL 20, 1987

Adopted 5/5/87 (p. 1084)

HOUSE AMENDMENT TO
SENATE FILE 55

S-4008

1 Amend Senate File 55, as amended, passed, and
2 reprinted by the Senate, as follows:

3 1. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
4 following:

5 "Sec. ____ . NEW SECTION. 99B.2A MINIMUM AGE.

6 It is unlawful for an individual under eighteen
7 years of age to participate in or be in attendance at
8 a bingo occasion after seven o'clock p.m. if the prize
9 for a winner is greater than or equal to twenty-five
10 dollars in a single game."

11 2. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
12 following:

13 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.5, subsection 1, paragraph
14 g, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

15 g. The actual retail value of any prize does not
16 exceed fifty dollars. If a prize consists of more
17 than one item, unit, or part, the aggregate retail
18 value of all items, units, or parts shall not exceed
19 fifty dollars. However, either a fair sponsor or a
20 qualified organization, but not both, may hold one
21 raffle per calendar year at which a-prize prizes
22 having a combined value not greater than twenty
23 thousand dollars may be offered. If the prize is
24 merchandise, its value shall be determined by the
25 purchase price paid by the fair sponsor or qualified
26 organization."

27 3. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the
28 following:

29 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.6, subsection 1, unnumbered
30 paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

31 Except as provided in subsections 5, 6, and 6 7,
32 gambling is unlawful on premises for which a class
33 "A", class "B", class "C", or class "D" liquor control
34 license, or class "B" beer permit has been issued
35 pursuant to chapter 123 unless all of the following
36 are complied with:

37 Sec. ____ . Section 99B.6, Code 1987, is amended by
38 adding the following new subsection:

39 NEW SUBSECTION. 7. The holder of a liquor control
40 license or beer permit may conduct a sports betting
41 pool if the game is publicly displayed and the rules
42 of the game, including the cost per participant and
43 the amount of the winning is conspicuously displayed
44 on or near the pool. No participant may wager more
45 than five dollars and the maximum winnings to all
46 participants from the pool shall not exceed five
47 hundred dollars. The provisions of subsection 1,
48 except paragraphs "c" and "h" and the prohibition of
49 the use of concealed numbers in paragraph "d", are
50 applicable to pools conducted under this subsection.

S-4008 pg. 2

1 If a pool permitted by this subsection involves the
2 use of concealed numbers, the numbers shall be
3 selected by a random method and no person shall be
4 aware of the numbers at the time wagers are made in
5 the pool. All moneys wagered shall be awarded to
6 participants. For purposes of this subsection, "pool"
7 means a game in which the participants select a square
8 on a grid corresponding to numbers on two intersecting
9 sides of the grid and winners are determined by
10 whether the square selected corresponds to numbers
11 relating to an athletic event in the manner prescribed
12 by the rules of the game."

13 4. Page 1, by inserting after line 18 the fol-
14 lowing:

15 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.7, subsection 1, Code 1987,
16 is amended by adding the following new lettered para-
17 graph:

18 NEW LETTERED PARAGRAPH. p. The person or
19 organization shall keep records of all persons who
20 serve as manager or cashier, or who are responsible
21 for carrying out duties with respect to a bingo
22 account. Any person or organization which knowingly
23 permits a person who was a manager, cashier, or
24 responsible for carrying out duties with respect to a
25 bingo account for another organization at the time of
26 one or more violations leading to revocation of its
27 license, and which license is currently under
28 revocation shall be subject to license revocation."

29 5. Page 1, by striking lines 19 through 21 and
30 inserting the following:

31 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.7, subsection 2, paragraph
32 c, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to
33 read as follows:

34 The Except for purposes of bingo, the person from
35 whom the premises are rented shall not be a liquor
36 control licensee or beer permittee with respect to
37 those premises or with respect to adjacent premises."

38 6. Page 1, by inserting before line 22 the
39 following:

40 "Sec. ____ . Section 99B.8, subsection 1, unnumbered
41 paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

42 Games of skill, games of chance, card games and
43 raffles lawfully may be conducted during a period of
44 twelve consecutive hours once each year ~~at any~~
45 ~~location or by any person.~~ The games or raffles may
46 be conducted at any location except one for which a
47 license is required pursuant to section 99B.3 or
48 section 99B.5, or except a location covered by a class
49 "C" or class "B" liquor control license, or any beer
50 permit unless such location has been licensed pursuant

4008 pg. 3

1 to-section-99B-6-as-premises-upon-which-gambling-is
2 allowed, but only if all of the following are complied
3 with:

4 Sec. ____ . Section 99B.8, subsection 3, Code 1987,
5 is amended to read as follows:

6 3. The division may issue a license pursuant to
7 this section only once during a calendar year to any
8 one person ~~or-for-any-one-occasion~~. The license may be
9 issued only upon submission to the division of an
10 application and a license fee of twenty-five dollars."

11 7. Title page, line 6, by inserting after the
12 word "permittee" the following: ", and relating to
13 the age of individuals allowed to be present at a
14 bingo occasion."

15 8. By renumbering, relettering, or redesignating
16 and correcting internal references as necessary.

S-4008
Filed May 5, 1987

RECEIVED FROM THE HOUSE

SENATE FILE 55

-4017

1 Amend the House amendment, S-4008, to Senate File
2 55 as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate, as
3 follows:
4 1. Page 1, by striking lines 3 through 10.

S-4017

Filed May 6, 1987

BY JOE J. WELSH

ADOPTED (p. 1724)

SENATE FILE 55

S-4018

1 Amend the House amendment, S-4008, to Senate File
2 55, as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate as
3 follows:
4 1. Page 3, by inserting after line 10 the
5 following:
6 "____. Page 1, by inserting before line 22, the
7 following:
8 "Sec. _____. This Act, being deemed of immediate
9 importance, takes effect upon enactment."
10 2. Page 3, line 14, by striking the word
11 "occasion." and inserting in lieu thereof the
12 following: "occasion, and providing an effective
13 date."

S-4018

Filed May 6, 1987

BY HURLEY W. HALL

ADOPTED (p. 1724)

SENATE AMENDMENT TO HOUSE AMENDMENT TO SENATE FILE 55
H-4233

1 Amend the House amendment, S-4008, to Senate File
2 55 as amended, passed and reprinted by the Senate, as
3 follows:

4 1. Page 1, by striking lines 3 through 10.

5 2. Page 3, by inserting after line 10 the
6 following:

7 "____. Page 1, by inserting before line 22, the
8 following:

9 "Sec. ____ . This Act, being deemed of immediate
10 importance, takes effect upon enactment."

11 3. Page 3, line 14, by striking the word
12 "occasion." and inserting in lieu thereof the
13 following: "occasion, and providing an effective
14 date."

15 4. By renumbering, relettering, or redesignating
16 and correcting internal references as necessary.

H-4233 FILED MAY 6, 1987 RECEIVED FROM THE SENATE

Adopted 5/5/87 (p. 2200)

SENATE FILE 55

H-3925

1 Amend the House amendment, H-3890, to Senate File
2 55 as amended, passed, and reprinted by the Senate as
3 follows:

4 1. Page 1, by striking lines 32 through 36 and
5 inserting the following: "section 99B.5, or-except-a
6 location-covered-by-a-class-"C",-or-class-"D"-liquor
7 control-license, or-any-beer-permit-unless-such
8 location-has-been-licensed-pursuant-to-section-99B-6
9 as-premises-upon-which-gambling-is-allowed, but only
10 if all of the following are complied".

H-3925 FILED APRIL 23, 1987 BY JOCHUM of Dubuque

Adopted 5/5/87 (p. 1985)

SENATE FILE 55

AN ACT

TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT THAT A GAMBLING LICENSE CANNOT BE ISSUED FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS FOR A LOCATION FOR WHICH A GAMBLING LICENSE WAS REVOKED, AND REMOVING THE PROHIBITION AGAINST CONDUCTING GAMES OF SKILL, GAMES OF CHANCE, AND RAFFLES ON THE PREMISES OF A LIQUOR CONTROL LICENSEE OR BEER PERMITTEE, AND RELATING TO THE AGE OF INDIVIDUALS ALLOWED TO BE PRESENT AT A BINGO OCCASION, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:

Section 1. Section 99B.2, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph 2, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

~~A license shall not be issued for a location for which a previous license issued under this chapter or chapter 123 has been revoked until the period of the revocation or revocations has elapsed.~~ A license shall not be issued to an individual whose previous license issued under this chapter or chapter 123 has been revoked until the period of revocation or revocations has elapsed. This prohibition applies even though the individual has created a different legal entity than the one to which the previous license that had been revoked was issued. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, a license is valid for a period of two years from the date of issue. The license fee is not refundable, but shall be returned to the applicant if an application is not approved. If a bingo license is issued by the division, the licensee shall be notified by the division of the renewal date for the license ten days prior to that date.

Sec. 2. Section 99B.5, subsection 1, paragraph g, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

g. The actual retail value of any prize does not exceed fifty dollars. If a prize consists of more than one item, unit, or part, the aggregate retail value of all items, units, or parts shall not exceed fifty dollars. However, either a fair sponsor or a qualified organization, but not both, may hold one raffle per calendar year at which ~~a prize~~ prizes having a combined value not greater than twenty thousand dollars may be offered. If the prize is merchandise, its value shall be determined by the purchase price paid by the fair sponsor or qualified organization.

Sec. 3. Section 99B.6, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

Except as provided in subsections 5, 6, and 6 7, gambling is unlawful on premises for which a class "A", class "B", class "C", or class "D" liquor control license, or class "B" beer permit has been issued pursuant to chapter 123 unless all of the following are complied with:

Sec. 4. Section 99B.6, Code 1987, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

NEW SUBSECTION. 7. The holder of a liquor control license or beer permit may conduct a sports betting pool if the game is publicly displayed and the rules of the game, including the cost per participant and the amount of the winning is conspicuously displayed on or near the pool. No participant may wager more than five dollars and the maximum winnings to all participants from the pool shall not exceed five hundred dollars. The provisions of subsection 1, except paragraphs "c" and "h" and the prohibition of the use of concealed numbers in paragraph "d", are applicable to pools conducted under this subsection. If a pool permitted by this subsection involves the use of concealed numbers, the numbers shall be selected by a random method and no person shall be aware of the numbers at the time wagers are made in the pool. All moneys wagered shall be awarded to participants. For purposes of this subsection, "pool" means a game in which the

participants select a square on a grid corresponding to numbers on two intersecting sides of the grid and winners are determined by whether the square selected corresponds to numbers relating to an athletic event in the manner prescribed by the rules of the game.

Sec. 5. Section 99B.7, subsection 1, Code 1987, is amended by adding the following new lettered paragraph:

NEW LETTERED PARAGRAPH. p. The person or organization shall keep records of all persons who serve as manager or cashier, or who are responsible for carrying out duties with respect to a bingo account. Any person or organization which knowingly permits a person who was a manager, cashier, or responsible for carrying out duties with respect to a bingo account for another organization at the time of one or more violations leading to revocation of its license, and which license is currently under revocation shall be subject to license revocation.

Sec. 6. Section 99B.7, subsection 2, paragraph c, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

The Except for purposes of bingo, the person from whom the premises are rented shall not be a liquor control licensee or beer permittee with respect to those premises or with respect to adjacent premises.

Sec. 7. Section 99B.8, subsection 1, unnumbered paragraph 1, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

Games of skill, games of chance, card games and raffles lawfully may be conducted during a period of twelve consecutive hours once each year at any location by any person. The games or raffles may be conducted at any location except one for which a license is required pursuant to section 99B.3 or section 99B.5, or except a location covered by a class "B" or class "B" liquor control license or any beer permit unless such location has been licensed pursuant to section 99B.5 as premises upon which gambling is allowed, but only if all of the following are complied with:

Sec. 8. Section 99B.8, subsection 3, Code 1987, is amended to read as follows:

3. The division may issue a license pursuant to this section only once during a calendar year to any one person or ~~for any one location~~. The license may be issued only upon submission to the division of an application and a license fee of twenty-five dollars.

Sec. 9. This Act, being deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

JO ANN ZIMMERMAN
President of the Senate

DONALD D. AVENSON
Speaker of the House

I hereby certify that this bill originated in the Senate and is known as Senate File 55, Seventy-second General Assembly.

JOHN F. DWYER
Secretary of the Senate

Approved June 3, 1987

TERRY E. BRANSTAD
Governor